

Northumbria University NEWCASTLE

Faculty of Health and Life Sciences

Professional Practice Placements Handbook

BSc (Hons) Occupational Therapy MSc (pre-registration) Occupational Therapy (2017 validated programmes)

Contents

	Rationale of Practice Placement	
	Students	
	Practice Placement Liaison Tutor	
	Personal Tutors	
	Patch Tutors.	
	Practice Placement Co-ordinators	
	Practice Educators	
	Practice Placement Facilitator (PPF)	
	Procedures for the Arrangement of Placements	
	Support For Non-Traditional Placements	
	Records of Placement Learning	
	Placement Learning Opportunities	12
	Before Placement	13
	The Beginning of Placement	14
	Throughout the Placement	14
	The Mid-Point of Placement	
	The End of Placement	15
	Summative Assessment of practice	15
	Absence Whilst on Placement	
	Private Appointments	
	Incident or Issue on Placement - Other Than Failure of Placement	
	Withdrawing From Placement	
	Failing a Placement	
	Online Evaluation	
	Staff-Student Forums	
	Reasonable Adjustments to Placement	
	Dress Code	
	Student Identification	
	Personal Hygiene	
	Transport and Accommodation	
	Car Insurance	
	Supervision in the Placement Setting	
	Lone Working	22
	Making-up Time	23
	Placement Self-Directed Study Time	24
	Occupational Health Service	24
	Practice Placement Co-ordinators Meetings	26
	Practice Placement Educators Support and Updates	26
REF	ERENCES	28
	Level 4 – Placement 1/Placement A	37
	Level 5 – Placement 2/Placement B	
	Level 6 – Placement 3/Placement C	

QUICK REFERENCE INFORMATION:

Name of programmes:	BSc (Hons) Occupational Therapy MSc (pre-registration) Occupational Therapy
Address:	Northumbria University Faculty of Health & Life Sciences Coach Lane Campus Benton Newcastle upon Tyne NE7 7XA
Tel No:	0191 215 6641
Fax No:	0191 215 6303
To record sickness or absence during placement:	ask4help@northumbria.ac.uk
	Or use the student portal
BSc Programme Leader:	Stephanie Whittington - 0191 2156542 stephanie.whittington@northumbria.ac.uk
MSc Programme Leader:	Dr Tracy Collins – 0191 215 6608 tracy.l.collins@northumbria.ac.uk
Practice Placement Liaison Tutor	Dr Gemma Bradley - 0191 215 6289 gemma.bradley@northumbria.ac.uk
Placements Administrators (OT):	hl.placements.ot@northumbria.ac.uk
Programme Team/Personal Tutors:	
Dr Helen Atkin – 0191 215 6271 helen.atkin2@northumbria.ac.uk	Dr Kate Hackett kate.hackett@northumbria.ac.uk
Dr Gemma Bradley - 0191 215 6289 gemma.bradley@northumbria.ac.uk	Chris Gillespie chris.gillespie@northumbria.ac.uk
Dr Tracy Collins – 0191 215 6608 tracy.l.collins@northumbria.ac.uk	Dr Frank Lai <u>Frank.lai@northumbria.ac.uk</u>
Yvonne Dunn <u>yvonne3.dunn@northumbria.ac.uk</u>	Julie Lowe - 0191 215 6061 julieanne.lowe@northumbria.ac.uk
Cheryl Gascoigne <u>c.gascoigne@northumbria.ac.uk</u>	Domna.Salonen <u>domna.salonen@northumbria.ac.uk</u>
	Stephanie Whittington0191 2156542 stephanie.whittington@northumbria.ac.uk

Introduction

Welcome to Northumbria University and the Faculty of Health and Life Sciences.

This handbook has been designed to give you an overall picture of placement organisation and how it affects you, either as a student or practice educator (PE). Please read it carefully so that you can make best use of placement experience.

Practice placements are an integral part of the BSc, MSc (pre-registration) and Degree Apprenticeship (DA) occupational therapy programmes. For all occupational therapy students must complete and pass 1000 hours of assessed practice learning to enable programme completion and registration with the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), (HCPC, 2017).

All placements are provided in collaboration with provider organisations which may include, but are not limited to, NHS services, social care and local authority services, schools, charities, and private organisations. It is imperative that we work closely with the staff within these organisations and that all parties are clear about the roles and responsibilities they have. Practice placement educators are encouraged to attend Educator Courses and regular updates at the University, ensuring their own continuing professional development (CPD) and helping maintain quality of placement opportunities.

Northumbria University aims to ensure that students have a meaningful placement experience. As part of this process, students need to understand how placements are organised; the support provided and the policies and procedures that guide the organisation (HCPC, 2017).

It is hoped that the content of this handbook is comprehensive and assists with ensuring practice placement is a high quality, valuable, enjoyable learning experience for all those involved.

Professional Practice Placement

Rationale of Practice Placement

Practice placement and university learning is integrated throughout the programmes and provides progression in the development of competence to practice. In order to satisfy the requirements of The World Federation of Occupational Therapists (WFOT), the Royal College of Occupational Therapists (RCOT) and the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC) a minimum 1000 hours of practice placement must be successfully completed (HCPC, 2017; RCOT, 2019; WFOT, 2016). Practice placement takes place at specific times during each academic year, please see diagram of programme structures, (Appendix 1).

The way the placement is integrated in to the programme differs slightly between the BSc and MSc programmes. For the BSc programme, practice placements are academic modules in their own right, with the preparation for, and reflection upon, the placement experience contributing to the whole module. For the MSc programme, because there are less academic modules (over a shorter time of 2 years, rather than 3), placements are integrated in to modules which have a broader remit and focus.

Learning outcomes in the module descriptors relate to and support each of the practice placements. Students are also expected to set specific personal learning outcomes for each practice placement. For each practice placement, every student is allocated a practice placement educator who is a qualified occupational therapist and/or trained as a practice placement educator. Each student is also allocated a personal tutor from the core team based in the university.

With the exceptions of placement 3 in the BSc (Hons) programme, and placement C in the MSc (pre-registration) programme, all placements are organised by university staff. University organised placements take place within the geographical boundaries of the NHS Northern and Yorkshire Region. Placement 3/C is an elective placement, in respect of the speciality to be experienced and the location. In consultation with the programme and placement team, students will make their choice within the usual constraints of costs, travel, accommodation etc. This placement may be in the UK or overseas. The overall profile of each student's practice placement is monitored by the university team and maintained by the placements office staff, and a spread of experience is assured for each student.

As all placements are linked with academic modules, the assignments are designed to encourage integration of practice and theory. While on placement the students will have time allocated to other practice setting learning which will be linked to university modules. Hours allocated to practice placement, i.e. those hours that contribute to registration and the hours for other learning will vary according to the student's level of learning.

LEVELS OF STUDY

The areas of learning within the 2 programmes; content, depth and breadth of study, mode of learning and assessment are organised to ensure appropriate academic rigour at each level of study.

It is important to remember that although the students on the MSc (pre-registration) programme study at level 7 academically they are still pre-registration students and therefore are developing the same level of competency in practice as the BSc (Hons) students.

The following shows how practice placement is divided into 3 levels of study.

Level 4

The student will be able to:

- demonstrate a sound foundation of underpinning areas of learning necessary for subsequent development.
- show appreciation of basic concepts which inform professional practice.
- practice at a safe level and demonstrate interpersonal competence.
- effectively use information resources.

Level 5

The student will be able to:

- develop personal and professional values and beliefs
- relate theoretical concepts to practice.

- demonstrate ability to transfer and integrate learning from a number of related areas.
- show competence in specific practice related techniques and organisational skills.
- integrate research based evidence into learning.

Level 6

The student will be able to:

- demonstrate critical analysis of theoretical concepts.
- show expertise in integrating theoretical concepts to areas of practice.
- deal with change and uncertainty and be prepared to challenge.
- use effective strategies to inform and develop knowledge and skills.
- demonstrate skills of critical analysis and research consumerism.

All modules of study from a specific level of learning must be successfully completed before a student can progress to the next level.

The overall profile of each student's practice placement is monitored by the Practice Placement Liaison Tutor in partnership with the Placements and Internships Team. Across all periods of placement, the team will aim to ensure diverse experiences across age and client groups, across practice settings and in traditional and non-traditional roles.

Roles and Responsibilities

Students

Students on the occupational therapy programmes are expected to function as adult learners and to take responsibility for their own learning and development. As part of this responsibility, students are required to prepare adequately for their forthcoming placements. They are assisted in this preparation by:

- the university tutor who assists with the student's development of personal competencies and guides the student as to how this links to wider learning and their continuing professional development.
- the PE who provides detailed learning objectives for the particular placement offered.
- practice placement liaison tutor who oversees appropriate placement preparation

Students are responsible for:

- making known to the placements team and/or their personal tutor any personal circumstances which may impinge on the organisation of practice placement (NB students are asked to do this at the beginning of the programme but it is the student responsibility to keep this up to date).
- contacting the forthcoming placement centre, normally 4-6 weeks before the beginning of the placement, to ensure that all the practical arrangements are in order. The first contact should normally be by email to the PE, with the placement co-ordinator copied in (where specified).
- informing the practice placement liaison tutor and/or personal tutor and PE of any health or safety issues which may affect placement learning.
- Attending (and arranging where necessary) the pre- and post-placement tutorials and the mid-placement contact.

- completing the necessary placement documentation
- discussing the placement learning contract with the placement educator at the earliest available opportunity (normally within the first few days of the placement).
- making good use of opportunities made available during the placement.
- providing evidence of learning.
- conducting themselves in an appropriate manner during all placement activities.
- adhering to the rules and regulations of the placement centre when on placement.
- preparing for, and contributing to, supervision sessions.
- notifying any absences from placement, at the earliest opportunity, to both the placement educator and the university.
- making known any areas of concern to appropriate personnel in the placement centre and the university (referring to the University's Whistleblowing Policy where appropriate)
- participating in assessment discussions.
- ensuring that all documentation relating to the placement (hours contact form and summative practice placement assessment form) is submitted following university processes.
- completing the online placement evaluation in a professional manner.
- maintaining an up to date health record.

Practice Placement Liaison Tutor

The practice placement liaison tutors are responsible for overseeing the placement process, ensuring a smooth transition for students between the university and placements setting.

The practice placement liaison tutors have responsibility for overseeing allocations to ensure students have a balanced placement profile and for working with the placements team, placement providers and practice placement facilitators (PPFs – in NHS Trusts only) to maintain and develop placement capacity and to ensure quality of placements. The practice placement liaison tutors also have the responsibility of liaising with module tutors to ensure students are prepared for placement and the necessary policies and procedures associated with placement are communicated.

The practice placement liaison tutors work together with programme leaders, placement co-ordinators and placement educators on the delivery of activities such as preparation of new placement educators; updates and study days; business meetings; and quality assurance issues.

Personal Tutors

The responsibilities of the personal tutor include:

- Facilitating the pre- and post-placement tutorials to review preparation for and consolidation of placement learning.
- Reviewing the health and learning needs of students in line with Disabled Student Support Recommendations (DSSR) and/or occupational health reports and initiating risk assessments, plans for reasonable adjustments and further occupational health or student wellbeing reviews where appropriate.

• Supporting the student with pastoral issues which may arise during placement and, where necessary, liaising with the 'Patch Tutor' and the practice placement liaison tutor.

Patch Tutors

Each member of the Occupational Therapy programme team has links with locality areas. Therefore, when a student is on placement in a designated area, the patch tutor has responsibility for:

- Liaising with the student and educator to carry out the mid-point formative assessment.
- Supporting the student, educator and service about issues pertaining to placement learning during the specific period of placement.

(NB Placement issues may sometimes overlap with pastoral issues and therefore students and/or educators may query whether to contact the Personal Tutor or Patch Tutor. In instances such as this, either member of the team will be happy to be contacted in the first instance and can then offer guidance about which person can offer ongoing support).

Practice Placement Co-ordinators

The practice placement co-ordinator network provides an invaluable link in communication between university and practice placement educators. Practice placement co-ordinators represent a defined group of practice placement educators and are responsible for liaison with the practice placement liaison tutors and the placement administration team. Their responsibilities are divided into four main areas:

- organisation and co-ordination including identification of staff who are able to perform the functions of a practice placement educator.
- working closely with the PPFs to sustain practice placements within the practice setting.
- communication including representing practice placement educators at business meetings.
- working with the PPFs regarding support, monitoring and development including facilitation of practice placement educator's development with regard to student education, monitoring student evaluation and feedback and identification and sharing of good practice.

In smaller organisations, and particularly where there are only a small number of PEs the lead educator may perform these functions.

Practice Educators

Practice educators (PEs) are professionals who have undertaken a practice placement educator's course or are in the process of undertaking such a course. The practice placement educator is directly responsible for the student placed with them on a day-to-day basis.

Practice placement educators are responsible for:

• detailing the learning opportunities, to enable achievement of the placement assessment competencies, for the period of placement based on the student's level of learning and reflecting the service/practice area. **These are required in**

advance of the placement commencing to assist the student to prepare for placement and are communicated to the student through the ARC-WEB system

- health and safety issues
- creating an environment conducive to learning
- facilitating a range of teaching and learning opportunities including direct instruction, opportunities for feedback and reflection and delegated activities under supervision.
- providing the student with the opportunity to rehearse knowledge and transfer skills
- supporting and guiding the student (including signposting to University staff and services when required)
- informal and formal supervision of the student
- weekly formal supervision, including regular feedback and planning for learning
- monitoring evidence of learning related to competencies.
- documenting formative and summative assessments.
- providing experience in organisation and administrative procedures related to occupational therapy service delivery.
- processing and ensuring completion of all necessary documentation for the student's placement and programme requirements (formal acceptance of the student within the workplace, indemnity forms, student hours record, practice placement assessment form, etc).

Practice placement educators are responsible for communicating with the practice placement co-ordinator, university personal tutors, practice placement liaison tutor, the placements office, and the PPFs, regarding issues related to the allocated student(s).

Practice Placement Facilitator (PPF)

The role of the practice placement facilitator (PPF) is to ensure the quality of the learning environment meets the minimum standards set by the professional, regulatory and statutory bodies. In order to achieve this they must work in partnership with clinicians, practice placement liaison tutors, practice placement educators and staff within the university. Broadly the role is to increase the range, quality and quantity of practice placements. Based within NHS Trusts across the region, PPF's support the needs of students and educators within a range of settings.

Specific stratagems include the following:

- To increase the range of practice placements:
 - PPF's work with practice placement educators to identify new opportunities and new services for student learning and to ensure placements reflect the wide range of settings in which occupational therapy is practised.
- To increase the quantity of practice placements:
 - PPF's work with placement providers and the practice placement team to develop a systematic method of data collection with regard to the total number of placements offered and provided for Northumbria University students and for students from other universities. This data can then be used to identify current and potential capacity.
- To ensure quality of placement provision is being monitored, maintained and improved:

- PPF's initiate new, and develop existing communication systems between practice placement educators, practice placement co-ordinators and academic staff to ensure:
 - all parties are aware of their roles and responsibilities.
 - PEs are updated regularly on changes within the university and to the curriculum.
 - the university remains up to date with changes affecting local services.
 - practice placement evaluations undertaken by students and practice placement educators are passed on in an appropriate and timely manner to ensure they can influence service and academic development plans.
 - work in partnership with placement providers to measure the quality of the learning environment via the annual collaborative audit with the practice area.
- PPF's support practice placement educators to understand the range of learning opportunities within a practice area, with the purpose of enabling students to gain a broad range of skills. Communicated through the ARC-WEB system, this resource will support independent learning, providing information such as access to specialist practitioners, inter-professional colleagues, and library services.
- PPF's support practice placement educators in supporting students with diverse needs to ensure compliance with the Equality Act (2010).

NB – as the PPF role is predominantly a role within NHS Trusts, in organisations where there is no PPF role, the programme team, in conjunction with the placements team, will undertake the above responsibilities.

Placements and Internships Team

The Placements and Internships Team provides administrative support for the organisation of practice placements. The designated co-ordinator supports the programme team with issues such as:

- Making placement allocations in line with service capacity and taking into account health/learning requirements and student personal circumstances
- An annual trawl to areas who provide placement offers through this method
- Supporting PPFs and placement co-ordinators to manage cancellations and placement changes
- Setting up new placement profiles through the ARC-PEP system

This team works closely with the programme team and is responsible for communicating appropriate documentation which supports each practice placement, and for ensuring that appropriate indemnity and police check requirements are in order. The Placements and Internships team are also responsible for maintaining the records associated with practice placement.

Contact details for the Placements and Internships Team can be found within the 'Quick Reference' section on page 3. Queries from students can also be directed to the ask4help team (ask4help@northumbria.ac.uk).

Further information related to Practice Placements can be obtained by visiting the Practice Placements website. To access the website, visit <u>www.northumbria.ac.uk/practiceplacements</u>. This includes useful resources for educators.

Procedures for the Arrangement of Placements

Practice placements procedures are in place to ensure that all student placement requirements are dealt with in a systematic and objective way – ensuring equity throughout the process.

It is important that students keep their Personal Circumstance up to date as these are considered when placements are being allocated. If any matter is of a sensitive or private nature, it may be more appropriate to discuss this with the personal tutor.

Students will be allocated to suitable placements throughout their programme, with notifications of allocations normally approximately 4-6 weeks before commencement. This notification will be via ARC-WEB or University email (personal email addresses cannot be used).

At the end of the first year of each programme, students will be asked to express interests to inform the allocation of future placements and opportunities. This will include expressing interests in particular practice contexts and specialisms, but also in placements which may include experiences in non-traditional and non-clinical practice learning such as leadership, strategic and research opportunities and overseas and out of area placements.

Diversity of Practice Placements

Public services such as the NHS and Social Care services provide the majority of occupational therapy student placements. However, increasingly placements are provided across private, independent and voluntary-sector organisations (PIVO). This is in line with the RCOT learning and development standards (2019) which recommends that placements are planned and provided across a spectrum of public, private, independent and third-sector settings, and where frontline and non-frontline occupational therapy services are provided to individuals, groups, organisations or through activities such as leadership and research.

Some of these placements occur in sites that have neither a traditional occupational therapy service, nor an established occupational therapy role. For these placements, instead of being allocated to a traditional occupational therapy service, the student is assigned to an agency staff member (an on-site educator who is often not an occupational therapist), as a contact person for agency issues and concerns, and is supervised by an occupational therapy PE, often providing long-arm supervision. Both on-site and long-arm educators receive preparation from a member of the academic team.

The academic rationale for developing placements across public sector and PIVO providers is:

- to prepare students for potential employment in a range of diverse and nontraditional settings
- to promote the potential of occupation-focussed practice in new areas
- to encourage students to develop skills in professional reasoning, resourcefulness and autonomy.
- to encourage initiative, creativity and problem-solving skills.

Meetings are held with all organisations and members of the programme team prior to a non-traditional placement being arranged to ensure that student learning opportunities can be met. Meetings can also be held after the placement to review the process and make adjustments and arrangements as necessary for future placements.

Support For Non-Traditional Placements

Students and placement educators follow the standard placement procedure and contact the student's personal tutor or patch tutor if issues or problems occur whilst on placement.

Depending on the individual placement, additional University support may include guidance in relation to new models of supervision or additional peer support sessions for students in similar organisations.

Documents to Assist Students' Development and Learning During Practice Placement

Records of Placement Learning

To provide a structured and regularly documented approach to integrated and reflective learning, students are provided with specific tools to document and evidence their placement learning. These tools include

- reflective tools to facilitate the recording of learning experiences and achievements.
- written summary records from the pre- and post-placement tutorials undertaken with the personal tutor.
- a learning contract template to record the agreement of specific placement learning objectives and the negotiation of support and opportunities to meet these objectives
- written records of the weekly supervision session between the practice placement educator and student.
- mid-placement summary.
- a summative assessment of practice documented by the PE at the end of the placement.

Placement Learning Opportunities

Students and academic tutors can access information about a placement site through an online university system called ARC-WEB. This outlines information about the placement area and the available learning opportunities including:

- Speciality and client group
- Information about the organisation
- Learning opportunities available on the placement

- Recommended pre-placement study
- Important contacts for placement
- Service hours and normal patterns of working
- Dress code
- Facilities (including access to library services)
- Location and how to find the placement area
- Top tips from other students

Inter-professional Learning

Working in the practice settings may be seen as the most effective way of achieving the goal of inter-professional learning. Students will be expected to observe, participate and engage in inter-professional and inter-agency work during their placements in order to meet assessment competencies.

In the practice settings, students will have opportunities to evaluate the nature of team working and their own contribution to caring for patients/clients in an inter-professional context. Competencies for each practice placement are linked to working inter-professionally as part of a team. PEs, with the support of Placement Co-ordinators and PPFs, are encouraged to identify opportunities for students to experience inter-professional learning and working within the practice area. Some examples include:

- An occupational therapy student jointly working with a student or staff member from other professions with a specific service user or in a dedicated area (such as a bay within a ward or an outpatient clinic)
- Students from different disciplines presenting a case or a journal article to a multiprofessional team
- Students contributing to student-led seminars to discuss real (anonymised) or hypothetical case scenarios or to discuss issues/ethical dilemmas
- Simulated learning opportunities for multi-professional students which may involve watching pre-recorded videos or role-playing an interaction
- Multiple students working on a shared project such as updating a patient information leaflet or writing a protocol and risk assessment for a new group. This could be synchronous (i.e. they all work on it together at the same time) or asynchronous (i.e. the occupational therapy student works on part of it and leaves it for another student to contribute to at the time of their own placement)

Practice Placement Process

Before Placement

After allocation of a placement, the following process will occur:

• the student will access ARC-WEB for relevant placement details

- the student will email the practice placement educator (with a copy of the email to the practice placement co-ordinator/education lead where stated), approximately 4-6 weeks before the placement is due to start
- the student is advised where possible to organise pre-placement contact, this must be carried out outside of university timetabled sessions
- the student will prepare for the pre-placement tutorial
- a pre-placement tutorial will occur with the personal tutor which will aid the student's theoretical, practical and personal preparation. The student will keep a summary of this tutorial as part of the placement documentation

The Beginning of Placement

During the first week of each placement the draft learning contract (Appendix 2) will be discussed with the practice placement educator in order to:

- establish the student's achievements, competency level to date and identify areas for development
- summarise the placement learning programme and discuss examples of how evidence of learning will be provided
- ensure mechanisms are in place for continuous evaluation of the learning process and outcome
- clarify the role of learner and educator in the particular setting
- establish how the hours for placement setting learning will be organised

Placement areas may also have their own health and safety induction programme for students; however, students are also required to complete the University induction checklist with the PE (appendix 3). Students should ensure that this is shown to the PE on the first day of placement to allow time to build it into the first week.

Throughout the Placement

Students will undertake practice learning, in line with negotiated learning opportunities and to assist in the achievement of placement competencies. Throughout the placement, informal and formal feedback will assist to reflect on their strengths and areas for development.

Alongside informal feedback, weekly formal supervision, in a private setting, should take place to provide a formal opportunity to review progress and develop action plans. This should be documented; sample documentation sheets can be found in Appendix 4.

The Mid-Point of Placement

A university tutor will carry out formative assessment at approximately the halfway point of the placement, normally by telephone or arranging an online meeting. This review will ascertain the level of achievement to-date and indicate the level of performance in relation to the competencies. This review and an indication of a pass/fail mark will be documented and discussed with the university tutor. The student will be provided with a copy of this meeting to append to their placement documentation. The following issues are normally discussed during the mid-point visit/contact:

- the structure and process of the student's placement learning experience including learning opportunities to date, supervision arrangements, and the student's weekly timetable.
- a review of the learning contract and weekly learning outcomes, including evidence provided of learning taking place.
- expectations of the student in relation to their level of learning.
- a review of the documentation of weekly supervision sessions.
- service delivery issues which are considered to influence placement learning.
- the action plan for the remaining weeks of placement.
- the likely outcome of the placement if the student continues working at the level observed to date and in line with the identified action plan.

A sample of the mid-point formative record can be found in Appendix 5

Further meetings can be arranged at the request of either the student or PE or if deemed advisable by the tutor.

The End of Placement

At the end of the placement the student and PE will:

- ensure all competencies are reviewed and an outcome for each competency recorded.
- consider statements to be made on the final placement assessment form which are reflective of strengths, areas for development and overall progress on placement.
- complete the end of placement assessment form (PE).
- complete the online placement evaluation (student).
- prepare for the post-placement tutorial (student).

Placement Assessment

Within the BSc and DA programmes, placements constitute the main part of an academic module and therefore the module is assessed by the achievement of placement competencies. In the MSc programme, placements are housed within modules with wider academic content and therefore the placement competencies only constitute one component of a wider assessment strategy. Students must refer to the module handbook for further guidance.

Summative Assessment of practice

There are two documents for the summative assessment of practice:

The Occupational Therapy Practice Competence Assessment Tool (OT-CAT) which must be completed weekly and discussed within weekly supervision meetings. Students must meet the required level of competence in all elements by the end of the placement period (NB – this could be recorded across different weekly assessment tools, with some

competency areas identified as achieved at the appropriate level on one occasion, and others achieved on a different occasion).

The Occupational Therapy Practice Assessment Document (OT-PAD) then includes documentation of the whole placement process and includes the summative assessment of practice. The summative assessment of practice outlines a series of competencies which are assessed either on a pass/fail basis or against a performance level appropriate to the level of learning. Competencies are assessed across four domains:

- Safe and effective practice
- Professional skills and development
- Communication and partnerships within the practice context
- Occupational therapy knowledge and skills.

The same documents are used to assess every period of practice placement although the required level of performance against the required competencies changes to reflect the level of learning.

The specific pass criteria for each placement is available in Appendix 6.

Following the Placement

Students must ensure on leaving the placement they are in possession of the original copy of the completed final practice placement assessment form. The completed placement assessment form and original contact hours sheet (Appendix 8) must be submitted in line with guidance from the module tutor; students will be advised of the exact dates prior to the start of each placement.

On return to the university students will attend a post-placement tutorial; the postplacement tutorial aims to:

- review the practice placement assessment form in relation to achievement of competencies and personal learning outcomes.
- consider future personal and professional development in relation to the competencies and the students personal development.
- start planning for the next placement.

Difficulties on Placement

If any student or practice placement educator requires advice/help/support or encounters any problems, he/she is encouraged to make contact with the patch tutor as soon as possible (contact details are available on page 5).

Absence Whilst on Placement

Placement hours are carefully calculated to ensure students meet the requirement for 1000 hours of supervised practice throughout the programme. Placement is a mandatory part of the programme and full attendance is expected.

If students are absent from placement due to sickness, on the first day of absence they are required to record absence through <u>ask4help@northumbria.ac.uk</u> or through the Student Portal. The student must also follow the process for recording absence at the placement site. If possible, students should give an approximate date for returning to placement and keep the PE informed of on-going absence. Students are also required to email the university ask4help service or update the student portal with the return date to ensure attendance records are kept up to date. If students are not able to speak directly to the practice placement educator, it is the responsibility of the student to make a note of to whom they left a message.

If sickness absence extends to 3 days, students must contact their personal tutor and patch tutor to make them aware of the missed period of placement learning. The patch tutor can then discuss placement hours with the student and educator as part of the mid-way contact. If student sickness absence extends for a significant period, discussions will take place with the student and educator regarding whether sufficient time is available to support placement learning and assess competence.

Requests to be absent from placement for other circumstances other than sickness must be made to the programme leader. Whilst absence due to sickness is an understandable part of placement, the programme team do aim to avoid disruption to placement attendance for other reasons. This is because placement absence can lead to performance issues (e.g. not having sufficient time to meet competencies); difficulties for educators (e.g. making last minute changes to their own workload to accommodate student changes) and in some circumstances may lead to unsuccessful placements or insufficient placement hours.

Over the duration of the programme students complete more hours than is required by HCPC for registration so this allows for some unplanned absences such as sickness. Therefore, if students are ill for up to 3 days they do not need to 'make up hours'. If the illness/absence is for more than 3 days, students should let the personal tutor and patch tutor know which will enable an individual review of hours.

Private Appointments

Students are expected to arrange these types of personal appointments during their own time. Any unauthorised time missed from placement will be recorded on students' hours sheets. Appointments such as medical appointments require pre-arranged authorised absence (see above).

Incident or Issue on Placement - Other Than Failure of Placement

For example a student at risk or following a health and safety issue; initial contact via student email or telephone – could be made by the student or practice placement educator.

- The student / practice placement educator should document the incident or issue.
- Depending on the incident, the practice placement liaison tutor, personal tutor, patch tutor and/or programme leader made aware of situation.
- Contact should be made with the student / practice placement educator to confirm details of the incident (this could be the personal tutor or the patch tutor).
- Clarification of issue with the student / practice placement educator.
- Issue resolved by telephone contact this should be documented by the university tutor.

Issues not resolved by telephone contact.

- Personal/patch/practice placement liaison tutor to contact the student and PE as soon as possible to address concerns.
- Documentation of contact and action plan completed.

Withdrawing From Placement

- If a student withdraws from placement for whatever reason the assessment will not be completed and the mark recorded will be zero.
- Each case will be reviewed on an individual basis.
- If the student feels that there are personal extenuating circumstances (PECs) that have affected the completion of the placement there is a university process for declaring these circumstance.
- If the Personal Extenuating Circumstances application is accepted the student will take the placement as for the first attempt.
- If the placement provider withdraws the placement; each case will be reviewed on an individual basis. The university will allocate a new placement at the first available opportunity.

Failing a Placement

A student can fail a placement if they do not meet the competencies and requirements of the practice assessment for the specific level of learning.

Appendix 7 illustrates the process to follow if a PE raises concerns about issues which may lead to the failure of a placement.

Following a failed placement, students will be signposted to university regulations and processes. Students will normally be supported to prepare for a second attempt at the placement, in a similar placement area, at a later stage within their programme. In line with RCOT Learning and Development Standards for Pre-registration Education (2019), students will not be offered a retrieval attempt if:

- The placement is failed on substantiated grounds of fitness to practice (standard 6.4.1).
- A learner fails the first attempt at consecutive practice-based learning components (standard 6.4.4)

Students can apply for recognition of Personal Extenuating Circumstances (PECS) where individual circumstances have affected the outcome of an unsuccessful placement. Where Personal Extenuating Circumstances are accepted, this could result in subsequent attempts being considered as a first attempt and therefore affect eligibility for number of attempts at subsequent placements (standard 6.4.4 outlined above).

Completed hours of a failed placement are not counted towards the 1000 practice-based learning hours required to complete the programme. This is in line with Standard 6.4.2 in the Learning and Development Standards for Pre-Registration Education (RCOT, 2019).

If students fail a second attempt at any practice-based learning opportunity, they will be withdrawn from the programme according to RCOT Standards (2019) and University assessment processes.

Evaluation of Practice Placement

Online Evaluation

The student is expected to complete the university online evaluation form which requires the student to answer questions around the quality of the placement and the learning opportunities provided.

The purpose of this exercise is to provide feedback for the university, practice placement providers, and to form part of the information used during audit and review of practice learning environments. Students must complete the online evaluation form to gain access to future placement details.

Summaries of the completed evaluation forms are shared with placement providers via the PPF's and/or the placement liaison tutor or patch tutor. Feedback should be given professionally with any criticism worded in a constructive manner.

Staff-Student Forums

Staff-student forums are led by elected student representatives and take place in university, normally once per semester, with the aim of facilitating regular communication between the student cohort and the programme team. Practice placement is a standard agenda item for this forum which offers a further feedback mechanism to the written evaluation every student completes at the end of each placement.

Policies and Procedures Relating to Placement

Please access the university website at:

<u>www.northumbria.ac.uk/hcesplacements</u> for the most recent versions of policies and procedures relevant to occupational therapy students on placement, below is further information for clarification.

Reasonable Adjustments to Placement

All students undergo occupational health assessment before commencement on the occupational therapy programme. Where this assessment identifies health needs, recommendations and reasonable adjustments for placement will be discussed with the personal tutor, and where necessary, the practice placement liaison tutor. For any student where a new health need arises during the programme, a re-referral to occupational health can be initiated by the student or by the personal tutor. On some occasions, this is in response to a University Disabled Student Support Recommendations (DSSR) report which outlines the requirement for referral to occupational health.

In advance of each placement, and as part of pre-placement tutorials, health needs and/or learning needs and associated reasonable adjustments will be reviewed and documented with re-referral to occupational health if required. All students will be offered support to communicate reasonable adjustments to the practice area although in non-complex situations, some students may advocate for themselves to negotiate reasonable adjustments to placement to support with health or learning needs.

In more complex situations the student and personal tutor (and with support from the practice placement liaison tutor and PPF where relevant) will have a tri-partite meeting with the PE to discuss reasonable adjustments to placement learning. If adjustments cannot be accommodated, an alternative placement will be sought.

An outline of the process for assessing and communicating reasonable adjustments to placement is provided in appendix 9

Dress Code

- The student must follow the uniform policy of the placement provider. In addition, it is expected that students will dress in a way that supports the perception of personal and professional integrity as this will have a direct effect on the therapist/client relationship and subsequent professional interventions, whilst helping to maintain staff and patient/client safety.
- The values and religious/ cultural sensitivities of clients/patients in relation to dress should be remembered and due respect given to this, in particular when visiting their homes.
- Religious requirements regarding dress will be treated sensitively and will be negotiated on an individual basis between the student, the PE and the personal tutor if required.
- Care must be taken to avoid dressing in such a way that could be seen as politically, culturally, ethnically or sexually provocative or inappropriate.
- Uniforms must not be worn outside of placement or to travel to/from the placement area. Students must seek guidance from the practice area about changing facilities and lockers for personal belongings.
- In settings where uniforms are not worn, the student must follow the policy on uniform or dress code of the practice area.
- In some settings, it will be stipulated that hair must be tied back for the purposes of infection control.

- Jewellery should be discreet and conservative however some Trusts may have a no jewellery policy which needs to be followed.
- Shoes should be practical for the placement setting this may include no heels or no open toes.

Assumptions regarding dress code must not be made. Students must take full uniform to all placements unless directed otherwise. Any student considered inappropriately dressed may be sent home and will be reported absent until they return to the placement appropriately dressed. Any such absences will be reflected on the students' hour sheet. If inappropriate dress is a persistent problem this may be linked to failure to provide consistent evidence of achievement of identified competencies and may result in a failed placement.

Student Identification

- Students must adhere to local organisational guidance regarding the wearing of photo/identity badges.
- University identification cards must be carried all the time for security and identity purposes. Students may also be required to hold a Trust identification card.

Personal Hygiene

- Personal hygiene must be maintained to support close physical contact with service users and other staff.
- Fingernails should be clean, short, and without nail varnish for infection control purposes and to prevent clients being scratched.
- Perfume and aftershave should be discreet and not overpowering as patients/clients can find strong smells nauseating.
- Hair should be clean and well groomed, and away from the face. If hair falls below the collar line it should be tied back without adornment. Sharp points e.g. in hair fastenings, ribbons, scarves and hats are a source of infection and a safety risk and are therefore not to be worn with uniform.
- Male students should be clean shaven, or if a beard or moustache is worn, this must be well groomed.

Transport and Accommodation

Arranging accommodation/transport is the student's responsibility. If a student requires accommodation whilst on placement, it is his/her responsibility to organise this. Therefore, it is in the students own interest to contact the placement area well in advance to check if accommodation is available and the cost.

Please note, not all placements are able to offer accommodation. If the placement area is unable to provide accommodation, it is the **STUDENT'S RESPONSIBILITY** to find appropriate accommodation e.g. B&B. The PPF's may also be able to provide advice regarding the availability of accommodation in specific placement areas.

Guidance on placement expenses can be found at <u>https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/nhs-bursary-students</u>

Car Insurance

Students intending to travel to and from the placement using their own car are reminded to check with their insurance company to ensure that they are adequately insured. Travel between hospital sites will require the insurance policy to cover business use. Use for 'social, domestic and pleasure' does not cover a motor vehicle for travel between hospital/placement sites. It is each student's responsibility to ensure that all journeys are appropriately covered by their own insurance policy. Students must check their Insurance Certificates and contact their insurance company to ensure that they are adequately covered.

If using their car to transport other staff, patients or equipment, it is the responsibility of the student to ensure their insurance provides cover for these activities.

Supervision in the Placement Setting

Students are expected to have approximately 1 hour minimum of formal supervision per week with their PE. This is an allocated meeting, in a private and neutral setting, which provides an opportunity for the PE and the student to discuss placement learning, progress towards competencies and provide feedback on actions undertaken to date.

Supervision must include educator and student generated items - it is a two-way meeting to which the student is expected to contribute. Specific evidence should be provided to enable documentation of student progress and achievement of learning outcomes. Learning outcomes for the following weeks should be identified, including how evidence will be provided.

The supervision meeting must be documented and signed by both the student and educator (sample documents are available in appendix 4). The university tutor may ask to review records of supervision as part of the mid-way contact.

Lone Working

In some placement settings it may be appropriate for students to work individually; this is at the discretion of the PE who will consider their own Code of Ethics and Professional Standards, the needs and safety of specific clients and individuals, the safety of the student and the student's ability and level of learning. At all times organisational policies and procedures related to lone working must be adhered to. The University policy is available here: www.northumbria.ac.uk/hcesplacements.

Placement Contact Hours

Occupational therapy placements are based on an average of 37.5 hours per week. Placement contact hours are those hours which are completed by a student during practice placement which are related to patient/client contact and service provision. In line with HCPC requirements, students must successfully complete a minimum 1000 hours of practice placement in order to be eligible for registration.

It is the student's responsibility to keep an accurate record of the hours worked each day and to have the weekly total agreed and signed by the practice placement educator. The lunch break period **does not** count in the day's total. The hours are rounded down to the nearest quarter of an hour.

NB: Any significant difference in placement hours should be discussed with the student's patch/personal tutor. (An example of an hours contact sheet is in Appendix 8).

It is an expectation that all students will fulfil all placement hours for each placement. However, sometimes due to sickness or other personal circumstances, a decision needs to be made whether a placement is still viable within a reduced time. Alongside looking at the number of hours completed, consideration will be given to whether the student had sufficient time, and provided sufficient evidence, to meet the required competencies at the identified level of learning. These decisions will be made on a case-by-case basis. If a student has not achieved the required competencies in the time available, a fail grade may need to be submitted to the University but where appropriate, students will be encouraged to consult guidance on applying for recognition of Personal Extenuating Circumstances.

Making-up Time

If the student does not have sufficient hours to complete the programme (i.e. if hours have been lost through sickness or absence) they are required to make up the time at the end of the programme. This is to ensure that students make up the relevant hours and type of experience in order to meet the regulations of the programme and the regulations of the Health and Care Professions Council.

Please note, for the purposes of insurance and health and safety, any extension or changes to placement dates and patterns must be negotiated with the University – students must contact their patch tutor or the practice placement liaison tutor to negotiate this.

University Guided Learning

During some placements students are allocated set hours to attend University sessions or carry out learning related modules. These hours are the responsibility of the university academic staff who will set work for students. It is not the responsibility of the PE to set work or supervise the student during these hours.

The actual timing of the learning hours is to be negotiated between the PE and student. Placement setting learning can either take place within the placement setting, or at another location e.g. home, university. Again, this detail is to be negotiated between the PE and student and must fit in with the service provision. The purpose of this learning is to provide specific times each week in which the student will be able to enhance his/her knowledge in areas related to placement and integrate theory to practice.

Placement Self-Directed Study Time

The student is entitled to a minimum of a half day study per week. This is to help integrate practice into theory and vice versa. The PE may set the student work that is appropriate to the student's level of learning and that links clearly to the objective statements on the practice assessment document, i.e. the work should act as evidence of achieving the competencies or be directly linked to practice-based learning. Study time needs to be integrated throughout the placement and can be recorded and verified as placement hours.

RCOT outline that a maximum of 3.5 hours per week can be counted as practice-learning time which contribute to the 1000 hours of supervised practice. However, it is likely that the working week will also include non-direct contact time which can be completed in a range of environments (e.g. within a clinical base, at home, or within University). This non-direct contact time (e.g. service developments, projects, case studies) can also be counted and verified as practice-based learning.

Health and Fitness for Placement

On receipt of confirmation of acceptance of a place on the programme at Northumbria University, all students are required to undertake a self-declaration of health and fitness in order to gain the required health clearance for placement. Health issues can also emerge at any time and it is the responsibility of the student to discuss any issues with their personal tutor.

The personal tutor will utilise any occupational health or student support and wellbeing reports in order to inform risk assessments for placement learning.

Occupational Health Service

There is a dedicated email address for student occupational health issues: **occupationalhealth**@industrial-diagnostics.com. Students can initiate this contact or can be referred by their personal tutor.

Disclosure and Barring

All students on the occupational therapy programmes require enhanced DBS clearance. Students are cleared at the beginning of the programme and will not commence practice placement without this in place. It is the responsibility of the student to discuss any changes to their criminal convictions with their university tutor.

Confidentiality

Confidentiality will be maintained at all times, refer to the Professional standards for occupational therapy practice, conduct and ethics (RCOT, 2021)

• Students should never discuss clients/patients outside of the placement area, particularly in public places. Any theory assignments directly related to the placement should maintain anonymity for both staff and clients/patients.

- During placement learning students may also become aware of organisationally sensitive information which should be kept confidential. Guidance should be sought from the PE and the patch tutor if required.
- Students should also think very carefully about what information is disclosed to clients/patients about themselves, for example where they live, who they live with etc.
- There are situations where it is highly inappropriate to discuss any level of personal information with clients/patients please discuss with practice placement educators for further guidance.
- Students must be aware of their rights, and the rights of others (e.g., members of staff, clients, relatives etc) to access information and must follow guidance outlined by legislation and organisational policy in relation to Information Governance and Data Security.

Staff Behaviour

Where it is felt by a student that a member of staff's behaviour has been inappropriate, the student <u>must</u> in the first instance report and discuss the matter with their practice placement educator/placement co-ordinator or PPF. If they feel this is not possible, they should inform their personal tutor or programme leader. A copy of the Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure is available online via the Practice Placements website: <u>www.northumbria.ac.uk/hcesplacements</u>

Health and Safety Risk Assessment of Students in Practice Placement Settings

Students can be provided with a copy of the University's position in relation to insurance cover for essential elements of the programme, including practice placement. Students also have the opportunity to become student members of the British Association of Occupational Therapists (BAOT) with the associated insurance benefits.

Health and Safety of all healthcare students on placement is covered within a Service Level Agreement with placement providers and monitored through annual educational audits. For placement providers not covered by Service Level Agreements (such as outof-area placements, or smaller private providers), a Health and Safety Risk Assessment is completed by each placement host and returned to the Placements and Internships Team prior to the commencement of the placement. Any deviation from the University Health and Safety form requires attention by the University legal representatives. The processing of the Health and Safety Form is the responsibility of the Employability Coordinator and Administrator.

From academic year 2020-21, all students are required to complete a COVID-19 vulnerability questionnaire and if risks are identified, a risk assessment is completed with the individual placement area.

Communication and Staff Development

Practice Placement Co-ordinators Meetings

The membership of these meetings comprises the practice placement liaison tutors, the programme leaders, practice placement co-ordinators, PPF representatives, representatives from the placements and internships team and student representatives. The meetings are organised to normally occur once per semester.

The aims of the meeting are:

- to discuss developments in, and the maintenance of, minimum standards of practice placement.
- to discuss policy changes and developments, programme requirements and developments.
- to discuss matters that have an effect on:
 - o comparability of university and practice assessment outcomes.
 - o co-ordination of placement activities.
- to provide practice placement co-ordinators and students with a forum for discussing matters related to practice placement.
- to disseminate information about university, health and social services' events that are relevant to practice placement.
- to consider the content of workshops, study days and short courses for the continuing education of practice placement educators.

Practice Placement Educators Support and Updates

Trusts/departments can invite the placement liaison tutor or representatives from the programme team to meetings to discuss specific issues. The practice placement liaison tutors are available for discussion with all PPF's, practice placement co-ordinators and practice placement educators.

Practice placement educators are encouraged to contact the patch tutor who is allocated to a particular student, to discuss any issue(s) that may arise regarding a particular student and if necessary, to arrange additional meetings or support.

Supporting Students on the MSc (pre-registration) programme

It is important to remember that students following this programme of study are preregistration occupational therapy students. By the end of the 2 year programme the student must have completed 1000 hours of practice-based learning and achieved the necessary competencies to register as an occupational therapist. <u>This is the same as for undergraduate BSc students.</u>

The pre-registration Masters degree programme has been designed to meet the needs of graduates with a first degree in a subject related to occupational therapy. Master's level students need to be able to quickly transfer previous learning and integrate this with specific knowledge and skills of occupational therapy. They will be expected to show mastery in academic subjects and to use this level of ability in understanding and developing competence when working with clients/patients and carers.

Practice placement educators are encouraged to recognise that although these students are working at a higher academic level their practical knowledge, experience and skills are the same as for undergraduate students; therefore master's students will still require the same level of supervision as students on the BSc (Hons) programmes. The process

of practice placement is the same for the MSc (pre-registration) programme as it is for the BSc (Hons) programmes. The practice assessment document is also the same.

Supporting Learners on the Degree Apprenticeship programme

Learners on the DA programme will be employed in a role relevant to occupational therapy and be supported by their employer to undertake the degree apprenticeship. However, once again, they are required to achieve the same 1000 hours of supervised practicebased learning and achieve the same competencies for professional practice.

Similar to the recognition above that students on the MSc (pre-registration programme) enter the programme with subject related knowledge and academic skills, learners on the DA are likely to enter the programme with specific knowledge, skills and areas of competence related to their employed role. However, once again, on practice placement, DA students will require the same level of supervision and will follow the same placement processes and practice assessment document. Practice educators will use their same professional judgement to delegate activities to, and supervise the practice of, a DA student as they would with any other BSc or MSc student, irrespective of their employed substantive role.

REFERENCES

Bossers, A., Cook, J.V., Polatajko, H.J., and Laine, C. (1997) Understanding the role-emerging fieldwork placement. *Canadian Journal of Occupational Therapy, 64 (2): pp.70-81.*

Royal College of Occupational Therapists (2021) Professional standards for occupational therapy practice, conduct and ethics. *London*: Royal College of Occupational Therapists.

Royal College of Occupational Therapists (2019) *Learning and Development Standards for Preregistration Education (Revised Edition 2019). London.* Royal College of Occupational Therapists.

Great Britain. Parliament. *Equality Act 2010: Elizabeth II.* (2010) London: Stationery Office. Available at: <u>http://www.legislation.gov.uk</u> (Accessed: 20 July 2015).

Health and Care Professions Council (2017) *Standards of Education and Training*. London. Health and Care Professions Council. [*Online*]. Available at: <u>https://www.hcpc-uk.org/resources/standards/standards-of-education-and-training/</u> (Accessed: 30.11.20).

Health and Care Professions Council (2016) *Standards of Conduct, Performance and Ethics. Your duties as a registrant.* London: Health and Care Professions Council. *[Online].* Available at: http://www.hcpc-uk.org/publications (Accessed: 20 July 2015).

Health and Care Professions Council (2012a) *Continuing professional development and your registration*. London: Health and Care Professions Council. *[Online]*. Available at: <u>http://www.hcpc-uk.org/publications</u> (Accessed: 20 July 2015).

Health and Care Professions Council (2013) *Standards of Proficiency. Occupational Therapists.* London: Health and Care Professions Council. *[Online].* Available at: <u>http://www.hcpc-uk.org</u> (Accessed: 20 July 2015).

World Federation of Occupational Therapists (2016) *Minimum Standards for the Education of Occupational Therapists (Revised 2016)*. [Online]. Available at <u>https://www.wfot.org/assets/resources/COPYRIGHTED-World-Federation-of-Occupational-Therapists-Minimum-Standards-for-the-Education-of-Occupational-Therapists-2016a.pdf</u> (Accessed: 30.11.20)

APPENDIX 1 – Programme Structures

Please note – programme structures may be subject to change at any time. Up to date programme plans are always available on the placements website: <u>HTTPS://WWW.NORTHUMBRIA.AC.UK/SD/ACADEMIC/SCHES/PROGRAMMES/PLACEMENTS/PRE-</u> <u>REG INFO FOR STUDENTS AND MENTORS/CODES/?VIEW=STANDARD</u>.

APPENDIX 2 – First supervision meeting/Practice Placement Learning Contract

First Supervision Meeting - to be completed by the student, in discussion with the Practice Placement Educator (PPE). If multiple PPEs or services are involved in the placement, this can be completed more than once, or completed in partnership.

Summary of placement experience to date including strengths and areas for development identified during previous placements (for the first placement, summarise wider relevant experiences to date). Feedback from previous placements should be available to your PPE for review if required.

Personal learning plan for this placement (linked to development needs above and the learning outcomes for the placement) – please detail between 3-5 SMART goals you may have whilst on placement.

On review of the learning outcomes, discuss what learning opportunities are available on the placement to help you to meet the required outcomes. If specific learning outcomes will be achieved within particular services or as part of different elements of the placement, please identify this here.

What are your arrangements for support, supervision and use of study time?

	ct on learning – this could i		
	earning needs and reasonable		
	family circumstances such as	caring responsibilities or	r regular
appointmen			
	of risk of discrimination linked		
	ssignment, race, religion or be	lief, sex, sexual orientati	ion, marriage and civil
	and pregnancy/maternity).		
- Religious p			
	periences which may be relev		
placement s	setting such as bereavement	or personal/family health	issues
Have you completed a	a local induction? (please	Yes	No
tick)	ü		
Arrangements for mid	-way University contact?		•
Signature of Practice		Date	
Placement Educator			
Signature of Student		Date	

APPENDIX 3 – Student Induction Checklist

NAME OF STUDENT:	
Start Date:	
PLACEMENT LOCATION:	

The following items should be included in your induction into the organisation within the first week. Please check off the items below when they occur and inform your placement organiser of any items not covered within one week of the start of your placement. This list is not exhaustive and other topics may be covered, which you may not if you wish; if areas do not apply to the placement area please identify as not applicable (N/A).

TASK	DATE
Introduced to key staff members and their role explained	
Location of toilet facilities	
Location of rest room, canteen (if relevant) etc	
Break and refreshment arrangements	
Place of work	
Dress code	
Work space	
How to answer the telephone, transfer calls and make calls both internally and externally	
Post arrangements	
Car parking	

HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES	DATE
Absence reporting	
Working pattern and arrangements (including arrangements for home working if relevant)	
Mandatory training required by organisation	
Vaccination status	
Emergency procedures	
Health and Safety policies received or location known	
First Aid arrangements (including names of first aiders)	
Fire procedures and location of fire extinguishers	
Accident reporting	
COSHH regulations	
Display Screen Equipment regulations/procedures	
Manual handling procedures	
Protective clothing arrangements	
Instruction on equipment student will be using (list equipment)	
Other issues	

Signatures	Student:	 Date:
	Placement Educator:	 Date:

APPENDIX 4 – Supervision Record

- Students are expected to have 1 hour minimum of formal supervision per week.
- The supervision session must be documented as close to the time that it occurs.
- It is recommended that supervision is used to regularly review:
 - The learning contract
 - The learning outcomes and evidence provided
 - The weekly OT-CAT
 - Strengths, areas for development and future actions
- It is the student's responsibility to share specific evidence within supervision to enable documentation of student progress and achievement of learning outcomes.
- Learning outcomes for the following weeks should be identified, including how evidence will be provided.
- It is the responsibility of the student to ensure the supervision meeting is recorded using the format on the following page. An alternative record-keeping format can be used (e.g. supervision record used by the organisation)
- The University tutor can request to view records of supervision during the formative placement assessment contact and post-placement tutorial.
- The PE should not retain copies of student supervision records with identifiable information after the completion of placement.

Supervision Summary – to be completed by the student during/after each weekly supervision. This should then be signed/agreed by the PPE

Student Name:	<u> </u>	Date of Supervision	
Strengths			
Areas for developmen	t		
Objectives for next w links to learning outco	reek (and		
	11103)		
Signature of student			
Signature of Practice			
Date of next meeting			

APPENDIX 5 – Formative Mid-Point ASSESSMENT

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE STUDENT – Self assessment and reflection on progress:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PRACTICE EDUCATOR – Comments on progress and areas for development:

Practice Educator Signature	Student Signature	Date

Additional Action Plan Required? Please circle	Yes	No	If additional action plan required, please refer to guidance on next
If Yes, date discussed with University			page
Tutor			

Formative Mid-Point Assessment – Guidance for Action Planning

	Criteria	Actions/Resources
No Action Plan Required	Is identified as working successfully towards ALL of the agreed proficiencies and has	No remedial action is necessary Continue as per original learning plan.
	passed the relevant number of OT-CAT assessments by the mid-point	Discussed during routine mid-way contact with University Tutor.
Additional Action Plan Required	Is working successfully towards MOST of the agreed proficiencies However, needs development in a specific area	Inform University Tutor of Action Plan status and arrange a meeting as required. Identify specific proficiencies which need further development /
		learning. Signpost student to feedback and actions from earlier supervision meetings.
		Identify how learning opportunities to support achievement will be provided.
		Regularly review the action plan with agreed timescales.
	Is NOT PROGRESSING as required to meet the agreed proficiencies	Inform University Tutor of Action Plan status and arrange tripartite meeting.
	Failure to reach the approach level in these before the end of the placement will result in the student failing the placement	Identify specific proficiencies which need further development / learning. Signpost student to feedback and actions from earlier supervision meetings – if necessary highlighting that expected progress has not been demonstrated.
		Identify how learning opportunities to support achievement will be provided Regularly review the action plan with agreed timescales. Schedule
		review meeting with University Tutor.

APPENDIX 6 – Pass Criteria For Practice Placements At Levels 4,5 and 6 Level 4 – Placement 1/Placement A

The student's expected level of learning for this placement is evidenced by:

- Completing a weekly OT-CAT which evidences 'Assisted' level of competence in each element at least once by the completion of the placement
- Achieving a pass standard for learning outcomes in section 1 (assessed by pass/fail)
- Achieving a foundation/assisted standard for learning outcomes in sections 2-4

Level 5 – Placement 2/Placement B

The student's expected level of learning for this placement is evidenced by:

- Completing a weekly OT-CAT which evidences 'Supported' level of competence in each element at least once by the completion of the placement
- Achieving a pass standard for learning outcomes in section 1 (assessed by pass/fail)
- Achieving an intermediate/supported standard for learning outcomes in sections 2-4

Level 6 – Placement 3/Placement C

The student's expected level of learning for this placement is evidenced by:

- Completing a weekly OT-CAT which evidences 'Skilled' level of competence in each element at least once by the completion of the placement
- Achieving a pass standard for learning outcomes in section 1 (assessed by pass/fail)
- Achieving an advanced/skilled standard for learning outcomes in sections 2-4

APPENDIX 7 – Process for Raising Concerns and Potential Failure of Placement

Practice Educator (PE) identifies concerns				
First instance of a minor issue		First instance of a r	najor/serious issue	
PE highlights area of co informally but then	oncern, could be raised also reviewed and			
documented i	n supervision.			
Encourage use of	student reflection			
Identify strategies	s and action plan			
No further action, supervision as normal	Repeated minor issues			
	100000			
	PE schedules a form	al meeting to discuss.		
PE uses p		nighlight why issue is a ma student reflection.	ajor issue.	
PE and student set/	document specific objecti	ves and action plan and ti	mescale for review.	
L	University informed with request for tripartite meeting.			
Student info	rmed of the risk of failure	and this is documented in	supervision	
Tr	ipartite meeting with stud	ent, PE and University Tut	or	
	Support offered t	o student and PE		
Action plan reviev	ved in line with specific co	mpetencies. Timescales f	or review agreed.	
	rements identified within	Student is unable to meet requirements of		
the action plan and is able to provide evidence of improvement towards required competencies		action plan and unable to provide sufficient evidence of learning towards required		
		compet	encies	
Student and PF may re	equest University Tutor	Ongoing work towards	successful placement	
attends follow		outcome, with normal s planning p	supervision and action	
Failed placement outcome recorded			10003303.	
Support offered to	o student and PE			

APPENDIX 8 – Practice-Based Learning Contact Hours (additional sheets can be added)

NB – the lunch break is not counted as placement hours

For the 'Activity' field, please select the type of learning from below:

- Practice Learning
- University Simulation
- Project work
- Mandatory Training
- Placement tutorials

(Please indicate which practice placement is being completed e.g. 1, A)

	-	

Student Name:

Practice Placement Educator:

Placement Location:

DAY	DATE	ACTIVITY	DAILY TOTAL	WEEKLY TOTAL	EDUCATORS SIGNATURE

DAY	DATE	ACTIVITY	DAILY TOTAL	WEEKLY TOTAL	EDUCATORS SIGNATURE

APPENDIX 9 – Process for reasonable adjustments and risk assessments NB – Covid-19 risk assessments assessed separately

Student has a disability, identified in a DSSR and/or Occupational Health assessment which is deemed to have lasted longer than 12 months and fall under the remit of the Equality Act			essment onger than	Student has a temporary health need which is unlikely to last longer than 12 months an is not under the remit of the Equality Act (e.g. pregnancy; short term change in mobility due to fracture)		
Reasona		ments to pla nended	acement	Short term risks on	placement identified	
Personal ti	itor and stu	dent to meet	to discuss	Risk assessment for p	lacement completed b	
		ts recomme		personal tutor and stude		
		nal Health R		activity to manage ar		
				instead of stairs; not atte	ending wards/patients	
Reasonable	e Adjustme	ents to Plac	ement to be	being treated for infect	on which poses highe	
discussed	d and record	ded and a) s	tudent to	risk during p	pregnancy).	
		DSSR or Óc				
Health Re	port b) sum	marised in a	n e-vision			
n	ote on the s	tudent recor	d			
			<u> </u>			
Student co	nsent to sha			equested although can be	shared lawfully under	
		GDPR	orovisions wit	hout student consent.	1	
Complex Re			omplex	Risk assessment com		
Adjustn	nents		onable	in person) by personal		
		Adjus	stments	where appropriate), whe		
Meeting a				after provisional allocation		
between F			asked to	than 2 weeks prior to pla		
Tutor, Stud			nunicate	assessment also summa	arised in e-vision recor	
PPE (and P			onable			
appropriate)			nts to PPE -	If adjustment activity car		
reason			possible	alternative placen	nent to be sought.	
adjustment		immediately after				
possible im		provisional allocation				
after prov		and normally no later				
allocatio		than 2 weeks prior to				
normally no later than placement star		t start date.				
2 weeks						
placement s	start date.					
If PPE has concerns						
If adjustment activity about adjustments,						
cannot be meeting with personal						
accommodated, tutor and student to be						
alternative p		arra	nged.			
to be so	ought					
Review 'Rea						
prior to eve	ry placemer	nt period and	d document			
prior to eve — updated w	ry placemer ith any char	nt period and nges. Note a	d document dded to e-			
prior to eve — updated w	ry placemer ith any char ndicate the	nt period and	d document dded to e-			

Do we need